EXCERPTS OF MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF CARMEL CLAY PUBLIC LIBRARY

A meeting of the Board of Trustees (the "Board") of Carmel Clay Public Library (the "Library") was held in the Board Room of the Library located at 55 Fourth Avenue South East, Carmel, Indiana, on September 23, 2019, at the hour of 5:30 p.m. (Local Time), pursuant to notice duly given to all members of the Board in accordance with the rules of the Board.

The meeting was called to order by the President of the Board, and the minutes of the meeting were recorded by the Secretary of the Board.

On call of the roll the members of the Board were shown to be present or absent as follows:

Present:

Absent:

(Among other proceedings had and actions taken were the following:)

The firm of Ice Miller LLP, bond counsel of Indianapolis, Indiana, had been consulted relative to the procedure to be followed in connection with the proposed bond issue and the rendering of an opinion approving the legality of the bonds. The Board was then presented a form of resolution approved by Ice Miller LLP, and recommended by them for adoption for the purpose of authorizing the issuance of bonds.

After due consideration of the final bond resolution, on motion duly made, seconded and unanimously carried, the same was adopted and is attached hereto as <u>Exhibit A</u> by a vote of ______ to _____.

It was then stated that the Board that it needed to approve the form of the Amended and Restated Post-Issuance Compliance Procedures. The Board adopted the resolution attached as <u>Exhibit B</u> by a vote of _____.

Upon motion made and seconded the meeting adjourned.

Secretary, Board of Trustees

APPROVED:

President, Board of Trustees

EXHIBIT A

FINAL BOND RESOLUTION 10-2019

WHEREAS, Carmel Clay Public Library (the "Issuer" or "Library") is a library organized and existing under the provisions of IC 36-12-2; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees (the "Board") previously found that the present facilities of the Library are not adequate to provide the proper library services to present and future Library patrons utilizing its facilities; and

WHEREAS, the Board adopted a preliminary bond resolution determining to issue bonds in an amount not to exceed Twenty-Nine Million Nine Hundred Ninety-Five Thousand Dollars (\$29,995,000) (the "Bonds") to be issued in one or more series for the purpose of providing funds to pay the total cost of the renovation, expansion and construction of library facilities, including site improvements, the acquisition of real estate and the purchase of equipment and technology in the Library district (the "Project"); and

WHEREAS, the net assessed valuation of taxable property in the Library district, as shown in the last final and complete assessment which was made in the year 2019 for state and county taxes collectible in the year 2020 is \$7,721,533,824 and there is \$990,000 of outstanding indebtedness of the Library district for constitutional debt purposes (excluding the Bonds authorized herein); such assessment and outstanding indebtedness amounts shall be verified at the time of the payment for and delivery of the bonds; now, therefore,

BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of the Issuer that, for the purpose of obtaining funds to be applied on the cost of the Project, there shall be issued and sold the Bonds of the Library to be designated as "General Obligation Bonds of 2019" (or such other name or series designation as determined by the Library's municipal advisor). The Bonds shall be issued in one or more series, in the total maximum principal amount of Twenty-Nine Million Nine Hundred Ninety-Five Thousand Dollars (\$29,995,000), bearing interest at a rate or rates not exceeding six percent (6.00%) per annum (the exact rate or rates to be determined by bidding), which interest shall be payable no earlier than July 15, 2020, and semi-annually thereafter on January 15 and July 15 in each year. Interest on the Bonds shall be calculated according to a 360-day year containing twelve 30-day months. The Bonds shall be numbered consecutively from R-1 upwards, fully registered in the denomination of Five Thousand Dollars (\$5,000) or integral multiples thereof (or other denominations as requested by the winning bidder), and shall mature or be subject to mandatory redemption on January 15 and July 15 beginning no earlier than July 15, 2020 through no later than January 15, 2041.

All or a portion of the Bonds may be issued as one or more term bonds, upon election of the successful bidder. Such term bonds shall have a stated maturity or maturities as determined by the successful bidder or by negotiation with the purchaser, but in no event later than the last serial date of the Bonds as determined in accordance with the above paragraph. The term bonds shall be subject to mandatory sinking fund redemption and final payment(s) at maturity at 100% of the principal amount thereof, plus accrued interest to the redemption date, on dates and in the amounts hereinafter determined in accordance with the above paragraph.

The original date shall be the date of delivery of each series of the bonds. The authentication certificate shall be dated when executed by The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., as registrar and paying agent (the "Paying Agent").

Interest shall be paid from the interest payment date to which interest has been paid next preceding the date of authentication unless the bond is authenticated on or before the fifteenth day immediately preceding the first interest payment date, in which case interest shall be paid from the original date, or unless the bond is authenticated after the fifteenth day immediately preceding an interest payment date and on or before such interest payment date, in which case interest shall be paid from such interest payment date.

Interest and principal shall be payable as described in the Bonds.

The Bonds are transferable by the registered owner at the principal corporate trust office of the Paying Agent upon surrender and cancellation of a Bond and on presentation of a duly executed written instrument of transfer, and thereupon a new Bond or Bonds of the same aggregate principal amount and maturity and in authorized denominations will be issued to the transferee or transferees in exchange therefor. The Bonds may be exchanged upon surrender at the principal corporate trust office of the Paying Agent, duly endorsed by the registered owner for the same aggregate principal amount of Bonds of the same maturity in authorized denominations as the owner may request.

In the event any Bond is mutilated, lost, stolen, or destroyed, the Library may execute and the Paying Agent may authenticate a new Bond of like date, maturity, and denomination as that mutilated, lost, stolen, or destroyed, which new Bond shall be marked in a manner to distinguish it from the Bond for which it was issued, provided that, in the case of any mutilated Bond, such mutilated Bond shall first be surrendered to the Paying Agent, and in the case of any lost, stolen, or destroyed Bond there shall be first furnished to the Paying Agent evidence of such loss, theft, or destruction satisfactory to the Library and the Paying Agent, together with indemnity satisfactory to them. In the event any such Bond shall have matured, instead of issuing a duplicate Bond, the Library and the Paying Agent may, upon receiving indemnity satisfactory to them, pay the same without surrender thereof. The Library and the Paying Agent may charge the owner of such Bond with their reasonable fees and expenses in connection with delivering the new Bond. Any Bond issued pursuant to this paragraph shall be deemed an original, substitute contractual obligation of the Library, whether or not the lost, stolen, or destroyed Bond shall be found at any time, and shall be entitled to all the benefits of this resolution, equally and proportionately with any and all other Bonds issued hereunder.

The Issuer agrees that it will deposit with the Paying Agent funds in an amount equal to the principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds which shall become due in accordance with the terms of the Paying Agent Agreement (as hereinafter defined).

The form of the Registrar and Paying Agent Agreement (the "Paying Agent Agreement") presented to the Board is hereby approved and any officers of the Board of the Library are authorized and directed to execute the Paying Agent Agreement after the sale of the Bonds.

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Resolution, the Issuer will enter into the Paying Agent Agreement with the Paying Agent in which the Paying Agent agrees that upon any default or insufficiency in the payment of principal and interest as provided in the Paying Agent Agreement, the Paying Agent will immediately, without any direction, security or indemnity file a claim with the Treasurer of the State of Indiana for an amount equal to such principal and interest in default and consents to the filing of any such claim by a Bondholder in the name of the Paying Agent for deposit with the Paying Agent. Filing of the claim with the Treasurer of the State of Indiana, as described above, shall occur on the dates set forth in the Paying Agent Agreement.

If required by the successful bidder, the Issuer has hereby authorized that the Bonds may be held by a central depository system pursuant to an agreement between the Issuer and The Depository Trust Company, and have transfers of the Bonds effected by book-entry on the books of the central depository system (unless otherwise requested by the winning bidder). Upon initial issuance, the ownership of such Bonds is expected to be registered in the register kept by the Paying Agent in the name of CEDE & CO., as nominee (the "Nominee") of The Depository Trust Company ("DTC"). However, upon the successful bidder's request, the Bonds may be delivered and held by physical delivery as an alternative to DTC.

With respect to the Bonds registered in the register kept by the Paying Agent in the name of the Nominee, the Issuer and the Paying Agent shall have no responsibility or obligation to any other holders or owners (including any beneficial owner ("Beneficial Owner") of the Bonds with respect to (i) the accuracy of the records of DTC, the Nominee, or any Beneficial Owner with respect to ownership questions, (ii) the delivery to any Bondholder (including any Beneficial Owner) or any other person, other than DTC, of any notice with respect to the Bonds including any notice of redemption, or (iii) the payment to any Bondholder (including any Beneficial Owner) or any other person, other than DTC, of any amount with respect to the principal of, or premium, if any, or interest on the Bonds except as otherwise provided herein.

No person other than DTC shall receive an authenticated Bond evidencing an obligation of the Issuer to make payments of the principal of and premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds pursuant to this resolution. The Issuer and the Paying Agent may treat as and deem DTC or the Nominee to be the absolute Bondholder of each of the Bonds for the purpose of (i) payment of the principal of and premium, if any, and interest on such Bonds; (ii) giving notices of redemption and other notices permitted to be given to Bondholders with respect to such Bonds; (iii) registering transfers with respect to such Bonds; (iv) obtaining any consent or other action required or permitted to be taken of or by Bondholders; (v) voting; and (vi) for all other purposes whatsoever. The Paying Agent shall pay all principal of and premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds only to or upon the order of DTC, and all such payments shall be valid and effective fully to satisfy and discharge the Issuer's and the Paying Agent's obligations with respect to principal of and premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds to the extent of the sum or sums so paid. Upon delivery by DTC to the Issuer of written notice to the effect that DTC has determined to substitute a new Nominee in place of the Nominee, and subject to the provisions herein with respect to consents, the words "CEDE & CO." in this resolution shall refer to such new Nominee of DTC. Notwithstanding any other provision hereof to the contrary, so long as any Bond is registered in the name of the Nominee of DTC, all payments with respect to the principal of and premium, if any, and interest on such Bonds and all notices with respect to such Bonds shall be made and given, respectively, to DTC as provided in a representation letter from the Issuer to DTC.

Upon receipt by the Issuer of written notice from DTC to the effect that DTC is unable or unwilling to discharge its responsibilities and no substitute depository willing to undertake the functions of DTC hereunder can be found which is willing and able to undertake such functions upon reasonable and customary terms, then the Bonds shall no longer be restricted to being registered in the register of the Issuer kept by the Paying Agent in the name of the Nominee, but may be registered in whatever name or names the Bondholders transferring or exchanging Bonds shall designate, in accordance with the provisions of this resolution.

If the Issuer determines that it is in the best interest of the Bondholders that they be able to obtain certificates for the fully registered Bonds, the Issuer may notify DTC and the Paying Agent, whereupon DTC will notify the Beneficial Owners of the availability through DTC of certificates for the Bonds. In such event, the Paying Agent shall prepare, authenticate, transfer and exchange certificates for the Bonds as requested by DTC and any Beneficial Owners in appropriate amounts, and whenever DTC requests the Issuer and the Paying Agent to do so, the Paying Agent and the Issuer will cooperate with DTC by taking appropriate action after reasonable notice (i) to make available one or more separate certificates evidencing the fully registered Bonds of any Beneficial Owner's DTC account or (ii) to arrange for another securities depository to maintain custody of certificates for and evidencing the Bonds.

If the Bonds shall no longer be restricted to being registered in the name of a depository trust company, the Paying Agent shall cause the Bonds to be printed in blank in such number as the Paying Agent shall determine to be necessary or customary; provided, however, that the Paying Agent shall not be required to have such Bonds printed until it shall have received from the Issuer indemnification for all costs and expenses associated with such printing.

In connection with any notice or other communication to be provided to Bondholders by the Issuer or the Paying Agent with respect to any consent or other action to be taken by Bondholders, the Issuer or the Paying Agent, as the case may be, shall establish a record date for such consent or other action and give DTC notice of such record date not less than fifteen (15) calendar days in advance of such record date to the extent possible.

So long as the Bonds are registered in the name of DTC or the Nominee or any substitute nominee, the Issuer and the Paying Agent shall be entitled to request and to rely upon a certificate or other written representation from the Beneficial Owners of the Bonds or from DTC on behalf of such Beneficial Owners stating the amount of their respective beneficial ownership interests in the Bonds and setting forth the consent, advice, direction, demand or vote of the Beneficial Owners as of a record date selected by the Registrar and DTC, to the same extent as if such consent, advice, direction, demand or vote were made by the Bondholders for purposes of this resolution and the Issuer and the Paying Agent shall for such purposes treat the Beneficial Owners as the Bondholders. Along with any such certificate or representation, the Registrar may request DTC to deliver, or cause to be delivered, to the Paying Agent a list of all Beneficial Owners of the Bonds, together with the dollar amount of each Beneficial Owner's interest in the Bonds and the current addresses of such Beneficial Owners.

The Paying Agent may at any time resign as Paying Agent by giving thirty (30) days written notice to the Issuer and to each registered owner of the Bonds then outstanding, and such resignation will take effect at the end of such thirty (30) days or upon the earlier appointment of a

successor Paying Agent by the Library. Such notice to the Issuer may be served personally or be sent by first-class or registered mail. The Paying Agent may be removed at any time as Paying Agent by the Issuer, in which event the Issuer may appoint a successor Paying Agent. The Paying Agent shall notify each registered owner of the Bonds then outstanding of the removal of the Paying Agent. Notices to registered owners of the Bonds shall be deemed to be given when mailed by first-class mail to the addresses of such registered owners as they appear on the Registration Record. Any predecessor Paying Agent shall deliver all the Bonds, cash and investments related thereto in its possession and the Registration Record to the successor Paying Agent. At all times, the same entity shall serve as registrar and paying agent.

In order to provide for the payment of the principal of and interest on the Bonds, there shall be levied in each year upon all taxable property in the Library district, real and personal, and collected a tax in an amount and in such manner sufficient to meet and pay the principal of and interest on the Bonds as they become due, and the proceeds of this tax are hereby pledged solely to the payment of the Bonds. Such tax shall be deposited into the Library's Debt Service Fund and used to pay the principal of and interest on the Bonds, when due, together with any fiscal agency charges. If the funds deposited into the Debt Service Fund are then insufficient to meet and pay the principal of and interest on the Bonds as they become due, then the Library covenants to transfer other available funds of the Library to meet and pay the principal and interest then due on the Bonds.

The Library represents and covenants that the Bonds herein authorized, when combined with other outstanding indebtedness of the Library at the time of issuance of the Bonds, will not exceed any applicable constitutional or statutory limitation on the Library's indebtedness.

If advised by the Library's Municipal Advisor, a series of Bonds may permit the Issuer to reserve the right, at its option, to redeem, according to the procedure hereinafter provided, all or any part of the Bonds, in such order of maturities as selected by the Issuer and by lot within maturities (each \$5,000 of principal shall be considered a bond for this purpose), on any date recommended by the Library's municipal advisor, at face value plus interest accrued to the date fixed for redemption.

Official notice of such redemption (the "Redemption Notice"), if applicable, shall be mailed by the Issuer or Paying Agent to the registered owners of all Bonds to be redeemed, not less than thirty (30) days nor more than sixty (60) days prior to the date fixed for redemption. Said Redemption Notice shall, with substantial accuracy:

(a) Designate the date and place of redemption, said place to be the offices of the Paying Agent; and

(b) Designate the Bonds to be redeemed; and

(c) State that on the designated date fixed for redemption the Bonds shall be redeemed by the payment of the applicable redemption price hereinbefore set forth, and that from and after the date so fixed for such redemption interest on the bonds so called for redemption shall cease.

The cost and expenses of the preparation and mailing of the Notices of Redemption shall be paid by the Issuer.

When the Redemption Notice has been mailed as above provided, the Bonds designated for redemption shall, on the date specified in Redemption Notice, become due and payable at the then applicable redemption price, and on presentation and surrender of such Bonds in accordance with Redemption Notice, at the place at which the same are expressed in the Redemption Notice to be redeemable, such Bonds shall be redeemed by the Paying Agent on behalf of the Issuer by the payment of the redemption price to registered owners out of funds held by the Paying Agent for that purpose. From and after the date of redemption so designated, unless default shall be made in the redemption of the Bonds upon presentation, interest on Bonds designated for redemption shall cease. If not so paid on presentation thereof, the Bonds shall continue to bear interest at the rate therein specified. All Bonds so redeemed shall be cancelled and destroyed. Bonds so redeemed shall not be reissued, nor shall any bonds be issued in lieu thereof.

In addition to the foregoing official notice, further notice shall be given by the Issuer as set out below, but no defect in said further notice nor any failure to give all or any portion of the further notice shall in any manner defeat the effectiveness of a call for redemption if Redemption Notice thereof is given as above prescribed.

(a) Each further Redemption Notice shall contain the information required above for an official Redemption Notice plus (i) the CUSIP numbers of all Bonds being redeemed; (ii) the date of issue of the Bonds as originally issued; (iii) the rate of interest borne by each Bond being redeemed; (iv) the maturity date of each Bond being redeemed; and (v) any other descriptive information needed to identify accurately the Bonds being redeemed.

(b) Each further Redemption Notice shall be sent at least 35 days before the redemption date by registered or certified mail or overnight delivery service to all registered securities depositories then in the business of holding substantial amounts of obligations of types comprising the bonds (such depository now being DTC).

(c) Each such further notice shall be published one time in a newspaper or financial journal published in Indianapolis, Indiana, such publication to be made at least 30 days prior to the date fixed for redemption.

(d) Upon the payment of the redemption price of bonds being redeemed, each check or other transfer of funds issued for such purpose shall bear the CUSIP number identifying, by issue and maturity, the bonds being redeemed with the proceeds of such check or other transfer.

If any Bond is issued as a term bond, the Paying Agent shall credit against the mandatory sinking fund requirement for any term bonds, and corresponding mandatory redemption obligation, in the order determined by the Library, any term bonds maturing on the same date which have previously been redeemed (other than as a result of a previous mandatory redemption requirement) or delivered to the Registrar for cancellation or purchased for cancellation by the Paying Agent and not theretofore applied as a credit against any redemption obligation. Each term

bond so delivered or canceled shall be credited by the Paying Agent at 100% of the principal amount thereof against the mandatory sinking fund obligation on such mandatory sinking fund date, and any excess of such amount shall be credited on future redemption obligations, and the principal amount of the Bonds to be redeemed by operation of the mandatory sinking fund requirement shall be accordingly reduced; provided, however, the Paying Agent shall credit only such Bonds maturing as term bonds to the extent received on or before forty-five (45) days preceding the applicable mandatory redemption date as stated above.

Each Five Thousand Dollars (\$5,000) (or other denominations as requested by the successful bidder, as permitted by law) principal amount shall be considered a separate Bond for purposes of redemption. If less than an entire maturity is called for redemption, the Bonds to be called shall be selected by lot by the Paying Agent.

Notice of redemption shall be mailed to the address of the registered owner as shown on the Registration Records of the Paying Agent, as of the date which is forty-five (45) days prior to the date fixed for redemption, not less than thirty (30) days prior to such redemption date, unless notice is waived by the owner of the Bond or Bonds redeemed. The notice shall specify the date and place of redemption and sufficient identification of the Bonds called for redemption. The place of redemption may be determined by the Library. Interest on the Bonds so called for redemption on the redemption date fixed in such notice if sufficient funds are available at the place of redemption to pay the redemption price, including accrued interest and redemption premium, if any, to the redemption date, on the date so named. Failure to give such notice by mailing, or any defect in such notice, with respect to any Bond shall not affect the validity of any proceedings for redemption of other Bonds.

If the Bonds are not presented for payment or redemption on the date fixed therefor, the Library may deposit in trust with the Paying Agent, an amount sufficient to pay such Bond or the redemption price, as the case may be, including accrued interest to the date of such payment or redemption, and thereafter the registered owner shall look only to the funds so deposited in trust with the Paying Agent for payment, and the Library shall have no further obligation or liability in respect thereto.

If, when the Bonds or any portion thereof shall have become due and payable in accordance with their terms, and the whole amount of the principal and the interest so due and payable upon such Bonds or any portion thereof then outstanding shall be paid, or (i) cash, or (ii) direct non-callable obligations of (including obligations issued or held in book entry form on the books of) the Department of the Treasury of the United States of America, and securities fully and unconditionally guaranteed as to the timely payment of principal and interest by the United States of America, the principal of and the interest on which when due without reinvestment will provide sufficient money, or (iii) any combination of the foregoing, shall be held irrevocably in trust for such purpose, and provision shall also be made for paying all fees and expenses for the payment, then and in that case the Bonds or such designated portion thereof shall no longer be deemed outstanding or secured by this resolution.

The Bonds shall be executed in the name of Issuer by the manual or facsimile signature of any member of the Board of the Library, and attested by the manual or facsimile signature of any member of the Board. In case any official whose signature or facsimile of whose signature shall appear on the Bonds shall cease to be such officer before the issuance, authentication or delivery of such Bonds, such signature or such facsimile shall, nevertheless, be valid and sufficient for all purposes, the same as if such officer had remained in office until delivery.

No bond shall be valid or obligatory for any purpose, unless and until authenticated by the Paying Agent. Such authentication may be executed by an authorized representative of the Paying Agent, but it shall not be necessary that the same person authenticate all of the Bonds issued. The Issuer and the Paying Agent may deem and treat the person in whose name a bond is registered on the Bond Registration as the absolute owner thereof for all purposes, notwithstanding any notice to the contrary.

In order to preserve the exclusion of interest on the Bonds from gross income for federal income tax purposes and as an inducement to purchasers of the Bonds, the Issuer represents, covenants and agrees that:

(a) No person or entity, other than the Issuer or another governmental unit, will use proceeds of the bonds or property financed by the bond proceeds other than as a member of the general public. No person or entity, other than the Issuer or another governmental unit, will own property financed by bond proceeds or will have actual or beneficial use of such property pursuant to a lease, a management or incentive payment contract or any other type of arrangement that differentiates that person's or entity's use of such property from the use by the public at large.

(b) No bond proceeds will be loaned to any entity or person. No bond proceeds will be transferred, directly or indirectly, or deemed transferred to a nongovernmental person in any manner that would in substance constitute a loan of the bond proceeds.

(c) The Issuer will, to the extent necessary to preserve the exclusion of interest on the bonds from gross income for federal income tax purposes, rebate all required arbitrage profits on bond proceeds or other moneys treated as bond proceeds to the federal government as provided in Section 148 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended to the date hereof (the "Code") and will set aside such moneys in a Rebate Account to be held by the Treasurer in trust for such purpose.

(d) The Issuer will file an information report form 8038-G with the Internal Revenue Service as required by Section 149 of the Code.

(e) The Issuer will not take any action nor fail to take any action with respect to the bonds that would result in the loss of exclusion from gross income for federal income tax purposes of interest on the bonds pursuant to Section 103 of the Code, as existing on the date of issuance of the bonds, nor will the Issuer act in any other manner which would adversely affect such exclusion.

The Issuer represents that it reasonably expects that tax-exempt bonds, warrants and other evidences of indebtedness issued by or on behalf of it or any subordinate entity, during the calendar year of 2019 and which a series of Bonds will be issued will be less than \$10,000,000 principal amount. This amount includes all obligations issued by, or on behalf of the Issuer and subordinate

entities, including building corporation bonds. At least 95% of the net proceeds of the bonds shall be used for governmental activities of Issuer. The Issuer hereby designates a series of Bonds to be issued in 2019 as qualified tax exempt obligations for purposes of Section 265(b)(3) of the Code, relating to the disallowance of 100% of the deduction for interest expense allocable to tax-exempt obligations acquired after August 7, 1986.

The bonds shall be issued in substantially the following form, all blanks to be filled in properly prior to delivery:

Registered No. R-1 Registered \$

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA State of Indiana County of Hamilton

CARMEL CLAY PUBLIC LIBRARY GENERAL OBLIGATION BOND OF 2019

Interest	Maturity	Original	Authentication	
Rate	Date	Date	Date	<u>CUSIP</u>
See Exhibit A	See <u>Exhibit A</u>	, 2019	, 2019	See <u>Exhibit A</u>

Registered Owner:

Principal Sum:

Carmel Clay Public Library (the "Issuer" or "Library"), a library organized and existing under the laws of the State of Indiana, in Hamilton County, Indiana, for value received, hereby acknowledges itself indebted and promises to pay to the Registered Owner (named above) or to registered assigns, the Principal Sum set forth above in installments set forth on Exhibit A on the Maturity Dates set forth on Exhibit A (unless this bond be subject to and be called for redemption prior to maturity as hereinafter provided) and to pay interest thereon at the Interest Rate per annum set forth on Exhibit A from the interest payment date to which interest has been paid next preceding the date of authentication hereof unless this bond is authenticated on or before June 30, 2020, in which case interest shall be paid from the Original Date, or unless this bond is authenticated after the fifteenth day immediately preceding an interest payment date and on or before such interest payment date, in which case interest shall be paid from such interest payment date, which interest is payable on July 15, 2020 and each January 15 and July 15 thereafter until the principal has been paid. Interest shall be calculated on the basis of a 360-day year consisting of twelve 30-day months.

Interest on this bond is payable by check mailed one business day prior to the interest payment date to registered owners or by wire transfer of immediately available funds on the interest payment date to depositories shown as registered owners. Payment shall be made to the person or depository in whose name this bond is registered on the fifteenth day preceding such interest payment date. Principal of this bond is payable by check upon presentation at the corporate trust operations office of The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., in the City of East Syracuse, New York, or by wire transfer of immediately available funds to depositories. If the payment date occurs on a date when financial institutions are not open for business, the wire transfer shall be made on the next succeeding business day. The Trustee shall wire transfer payments by 1:00 p.m. (New York City time) so such payments are received at the depository by 2:30 p.m. (New York City time).

This bond is one of an issue of bonds aggregating [Twenty-Nine Million Nine Hundred Ninety-Five Thousand Dollars (\$29,995,000)], of like tenor and effect, except as to numbering, authentication date, denomination, interest rate, and date of maturity, issued by Issuer pursuant to a resolution adopted by the Board of Trustees (the "Board") of the Issuer on July 22, 2019, as supplemented on July 29, 2019 and on September 23, 2019 (as supplemented, the "Resolution"), and in strict accordance with the governing statutes of the State of Indiana, particularly Indiana Code § 36-12-3, for the purpose of providing funds to be applied on the cost of the renovation, expansion and construction of library facilities, including site improvements, the acquisition of real estate and the purchase of equipment and technology. The owner of this Bond, by the acceptance thereof, agrees to all the terms and provisions contained in the Resolution and the Act.

The bonds of this issue may be redeemed prior to maturity at the option of the Issuer in whole, or in part in such order of maturity as the Issuer shall direct and by lot within maturities (each \$5,000 of principal shall be considered as a bond for this purpose), on any date on or after ______ at face value plus in each case accrued interest to the date fixed for redemption.

The Bonds are subject to mandatory sinking fund redemption at a price equal to the principal amount thereof plus accrued interest to the date of redemption on January 15 and July 15 in accordance with the following schedules:

Bonds Maturing		Bonds Maturing		
Date	Amount	Date	Amount	
	*	*		

*denotes final maturity

Notice of redemption identifying the bonds to be redeemed will be mailed to the registered owners of bonds to be redeemed.

If this bond is called for redemption, and payment is made to the Registrar and Paying Agent in accordance with the terms of the Resolution, this bond shall cease to bear interest from and after the date fixed for the redemption in the call. This bond shall be initially issued in a Book Entry System (as defined in the Resolution). The provisions of this bond and of the Resolution are subject in all respects to the provisions of the Letter of Representations between the Issuer and DTC, or any substitute agreement, effecting such Book Entry System.

This bond is transferable in accordance with the Book Entry System or, if no such system is in effect, by the Registered Owner hereof at the corporate trust operations office of the Registrar and Paying Agent, upon surrender and cancellation of this bond and on presentation of a duly executed written instrument of transfer and thereupon a new bond or bonds of the same aggregate principal amount and maturity and in authorized denominations will be issued to the transferee or transferees in exchange therefor. This bond may be exchanged upon surrender hereof at the corporate trust operations office of the Registrar and Paying Agent, duly endorsed by the Registered Owner for the same aggregate principal amount of bonds of the same maturity in authorized denominations as the owner may request.

The Issuer and the Registrar and Paying Agent may deem and treat the person in whose name this bond is registered as the absolute owner hereof.

It is hereby certified, recited and declared that all acts, conditions and things required to be done precedent to and in the execution, issuance and delivery of this bond have been done and performed in regular and due form as provided by law; that this bond and the total issue of the bonds is within every limit of indebtedness as prescribed by the constitution and laws of the State of Indiana.

This bond shall not be valid or become obligatory for any purpose until authenticated by the Registrar and Paying Agent.

[The Issuer has designated this bond a qualified tax exempt obligation for purposes of Section 265(b)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended to the Original Date of the Bonds.]

PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF THE ACT AND THE RESOLUTION, THE PRINCIPAL OF THIS BOND AND ALL OTHER BONDS OF THE BOND ISSUE AND THE INTEREST DUE THEREON ARE PAYABLE AS A LIMITED GENERAL OBLIGATION OF THE LIBRARY, FROM AD VALOREM PROPERTY TAXES TO BE LEVIED ON ALL TAXABLE PROPERTY WITHIN THE LIBRARY; HOWEVER, THE ISSUER'S COLLECTION OF THE LEVY MAY BE LIMITED BY OPERATION OF INDIANA CODE 6-1.1-20.6 WHICH PROVIDES TAXPAYERS WITH TAX CREDITS FOR PROPERTY TAXES ATTRIBUTABLE TO DIFFERENT CLASSES OF PROPERTY IN AN AMOUNT THAT EXCEEDS CERTAIN PERCENTAGES OF THE GROSS ASSESSED VALUE OF THAT PROPERTY. UPON THE FAILURE OF THE ISSUER TO MAKE DEBT SERVICE WHEN DUE AND UPON NOTICE AND CLAIM, THE INTERCEPT PROVISIONS OF INDIANA CODE 20-48-1-11 WILL APPLY. IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Issuer has caused this bond to be executed in its name by the manual or facsimile signature of the President of its Board of Trustees and attested by the manual or facsimile signature of the Secretary of said Board.

CARMEL CLAY PUBLIC LIBRARY

By: ____

President, Board of Trustees

Attest:

Secretary, Board of Trustees

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHENTICATION

This bond is one of the bonds referred to in the within mentioned resolution. THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON TRUST COMPANY, N.A., as Registrar and Paying Agent

By: _____

Authorized Representative

[End of Bond Form]

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that prior to the sale of said bonds at public sale, notice of such sale shall be published once each week for two (2) weeks in the <u>Hamilton County Reporter</u> and in the <u>Noblesville Times</u>, the first of said publications to be at least fifteen (15) days prior to the date fixed for the sale of said bonds and the last at least three (3) days prior, and in the <u>Court and Commercial Record</u>. At the time fixed for the opening of bids, the Board or its designated committee shall meet, all bids shall be opened in the presence of the Board or such committee, and the award shall be made by the Board or such committee.

The bond sale notice, when published, shall provide that each bid shall be in a sealed envelope marked "Bid for General Obligation Bonds of 2019," and the successful bidder shall provide a certified or cashier's check in the amount as suggested by the Municipal Advisor, payable to Issuer, to insure the good faith of the bidder. In the event the successful bidder shall fail or refuse to accept delivery of the bonds when ready for delivery, the check and the proceeds thereof shall be retained by the Library as its liquidated damages. The notice shall also provide that bidders for said bonds shall name the purchase price for the bonds, not less than 99% of par and the rate or rates of interest which the bonds are to bear, not exceeding six percent (6.00%) per annum; that said interest rate or rates shall be in multiples of 1/8th or 1/100th of one percent (1%); that the interest rate named for any maturity shall be the one who offers the lowest net interest cost to the Issuer, to be determined by computing the total interest on all of the bonds to their maturities and deducting therefrom the premium bid, if any, or adding the discount bid, if any. The bond sale

notice shall state that the opinion of Ice Miller LLP, bond counsel, approving the legality of the Bonds, will be furnished to the purchaser at the expense of the Library, so that the Library will receive due credit therefor in the bidding. The notice may contain such other terms and conditions as the attorney for the Issuer shall deem advisable.

The Library Director, Business Manager and a representative of Baker Tilly Municipal Advisors, LLC are appointed as a bid committee and are authorized to award the bonds to the buyer consistent with this resolution.

Subject to the terms and provisions contained in this paragraph and not otherwise, the owners of not less than sixty-six and two-thirds percent (66-2/3%) in aggregate principal amount of the Bonds then outstanding shall have the right, from time to time, anything contained in this Resolution to the contrary notwithstanding, to consent to and approve the adoption by the Library of such resolution or resolutions supplemental hereto as shall be deemed necessary or desirable by the Library for the purpose of amending in any particular any of the terms or provisions contained in this Resolution, or in any supplemental resolution; provided, however, that nothing herein contained shall permit or be construed as permitting without the consent of all affected owners of the Bonds:

(a) An extension of the maturity of the principal of or interest on any Bond without the consent of the holder of each Bond so affected; or

(b) A reduction in the principal amount of any Bond or the rate of interest thereon or a change in the monetary medium in which such amounts are payable, without the consent of the holder of each Bond so affected; or

(c) A preference or priority of any Bond over any other Bond, without the consent of the holders of all Bonds then outstanding; or

(d) A reduction in the aggregate principal amount of the Bonds required for consent to such supplemental resolution, without the consent of the holders of all Bonds then outstanding.

If the Library shall desire to obtain any such consent, it shall cause the Registrar to mail a notice, postage prepaid, to the addresses appearing on the Registration Record. Such notice shall briefly set forth the nature of the proposed supplemental resolution and shall state that a copy thereof is on file at the office of the Registrar for inspection by all owners of the Bonds. The Registrar shall not, however, be subject to any liability to any owners of the Bonds by reason of its failure to mail such notice, and any such failure shall not affect the validity of such supplemental resolution when consented to and approved as herein provided.

Whenever at any time within one year after the date of the mailing of such notice, the Library shall receive any instrument or instruments purporting to be executed by the owners of the Bonds of not less than sixty-six and two-thirds percent (66-2/3%) in aggregate principal amount of the Bonds then outstanding, which instrument or instruments shall refer to the proposed supplemental resolution described in such notice, and shall specifically consent to and approve the adoption thereof in substantially the form of the copy thereof referred to in such notice as on file with the Registrar, thereupon, but not otherwise, the Library may adopt such supplemental

resolution in substantially such form, without liability or responsibility to any owners of the Bonds, whether or not such owners shall have consented thereto.

No owner of any Bond shall have any right to object to the adoption of such supplemental resolution or to object to any of the terms and provisions contained therein or the operation thereof, or in any manner to question the propriety of the adoption thereof, or to enjoin or restrain the Library or its officers from adopting the same, or from taking any action pursuant to the provisions thereof. Upon the adoption of any supplemental resolution pursuant to the provisions of this section, this Resolution shall be, and shall be deemed, modified and amended in accordance therewith, and the respective rights, duties and obligations under this Resolution of the Library and all owners of Bonds then outstanding shall thereafter be determined, exercised and enforced in accordance with this Resolution, subject in all respects to such modifications and amendments.

Notwithstanding anything contained in the foregoing provisions of this Resolution, the rights, duties and obligations of the Library and of the owners of the Bonds, and the terms and provisions of the Bonds and this Resolution, or any supplemental resolution, may be modified or amended in any respect with the consent of the Library and the consent of the owners of all the Bonds then outstanding.

Without notice to or consent of the owners of the Bonds, the Library may, from time to time and at any time, adopt such resolutions supplemental hereto as shall not be inconsistent with the terms and provisions hereof (which supplemental resolutions shall thereafter form a part hereof),

(a) to cure any ambiguity or formal defect or omission in this Resolution or in any supplemental resolution; or

(b) to grant to or confer upon the owners of the Bonds any additional rights, remedies, powers, authority or security that may lawfully be granted to or conferred upon the owners of the Bonds; or

(c) to procure a rating on the Bonds from a nationally recognized securities rating agency designated in such supplemental resolution, if such supplemental resolution will not adversely affect the owners of the Bonds; or

(d) to provide for the refunding or advance refunding of the Bonds; or

(e) to make any other change which, in the determination of the Board in its sole discretion, is not to the prejudice of the owners of the Bonds

If any section, paragraph or provision of this resolution shall be held to be invalid or unenforceable for any reason, the invalidity or unenforceability of such section, paragraph or provision shall not affect any of the remaining provisions of this resolution.

All resolutions, or parts thereof, in conflict with the provisions of this resolution, are, to the extent of such conflict, hereby repealed or amended.

This resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its passage and signing by any officers of the Board.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the form of the First Amendment to Master Continuing Disclosure Undertaking and First Supplement to the Master Continuing Disclosure Undertaking (the "Undertaking") is hereby approved and the officers are authorized and directed to execute such Undertaking and any and all documents necessary to issue and deliver the Bonds including but not limited to a bond purchase agreement or bond placement agreement.

Passed and Adopted this 23rd day of September, 2019.

President, Board of Trustees

ATTEST:

Secretary, Board of Trustees

EXHIBIT B

RESOLUTION 11-2019 APPROVING AMENDED AND RESTATED POST-ISSUANCE COMPLIANCE PROCEDURES

WHEREAS, on September 24, 2018 the Board of Trustees (the "Board") of the Carmel Clay Public Library (the "Library") previously adopted and approved Post Issuance Compliance Procedures (the "Original Procedures"); and

WHEREAS, the Board has now been presented with Amended and Restated Post-Issuance Compliance Procedures (the "Amended Procedures") which amend and restate the Original Procedures to provide for a new compliance officer and to incorporate recent changes in law; and

WHEREAS, the Board has issued securities or has had securities issued on its behalf in the form of bonds, notes or other types of indebtedness (the "Bonds") in order to finance or refinance various projects; and

WHEREAS, by issuing the Bonds, the Library is obligated to comply with various restrictions and obligations, which are described in the financing and closing documents executed in connection with the issuance of Bonds, such as trust indentures, lease agreements, bond resolutions, tax certificates, arbitrage certificates and continuing disclosure undertakings, and which may extend for 20 years or more into the future; and

WHEREAS, libraries experience administration changes over time and it is in this Library's interest to ensure the continual satisfaction of these obligations and restrictions; and

WHEREAS, such restrictions and obligations require significant documentation, record keeping and diligence; and

WHEREAS, written procedures describing the monitoring, oversight and fulfillment of these post issuance obligations are beneficial to ensure maintenance of the tax-exemption or other tax beneficial treatment on the Bonds and compliance with Securities and Exchange Commission Rules and regulations;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board accepts and ratifies the Amended Procedures, presented to the meeting, and directs that these administrative Amended Procedures be incorporated into the procedure manuals of the Library administration.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Board appoints the person who is employed as Business Manager, or the equivalent position, of the Library to serve as the Compliance Officer (as defined in the Amended Procedures) and directs such Compliance Officer, in consultation with counsel, as appropriate, to implement such Amended Procedures.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Compliance Officer is also directed to review any disclosure documents, such as an Official Statement, Offering Memorandum or any other type of offering material, prepared on behalf of the Library in connection with the issuance of any Bonds issued hereafter and such Compliance Officer is authorized to consult with any staff, municipal advisor or counsel to assist with such review.

Passed and adopted this 23rd day of September, 2019.

Secretary, Board of Trustees

APPROVED:

President, Board of Trustees